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UNITED STATES INTERNATIONAL TRADE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20436

In the Matter of
Imvestigation No. 337-TA-613
CERTAIN 3G MOBILE HANDSETS
AND COMPONENTS THEREOQOF

NOTICE OF COMMISSION DETERMINATION TO REVIEW IN PART A FINAL
DETERMINATION FINDING NO VIOLATION OF SECTION 337 AND ON REVIEW
TO AFFIRM THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE'S DETERMINATION OF NO
YIOLATION; TERMINATION OF INVESTIGATION

AGENCY: LS. Infernafional Trade Commission.
ACTION: Motice,

SUMMARY: Notice is hereby given that the 11.8. International Trade Commission has
determined to review in part the presiding administrative law judge's (“ALJ") final initial
determination (*“1D™) issued on August 31, 2009, finding no violation of Section 337 of the Taniff
Act of 1930 (19 U.5.C. § 1337) in the above-captioned investigation. Specifically, the
Commission has determined to review portions of the ALI's claim construction and invalidity
analysis, bul 1o affirm the ALY's determination of no violation, and has terminated the
investigation.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Megan M. Valentine, Office of the General
Counsel, U.S. International Trade Commission, 500 E Street, 5.W., Washington, D.C. 20436,
telephone (202) 708-2301. Copies of non-confidential documents filed in connection with this
investigation are or will be available for inspection during official business hours (8:45 am. to
5:15 p.m.) in the Office of the Secretary, 1.5, International Trade Commission, 500 E Sireet,
5.W.. Washington, D.C. 20436, telephone (202) 205-2000. General information concemning the
Commission may also be obtained by accessing its Internet server at futp-/Swww. uxite gov. The
public record for this investigation may be viewed on the Commission's electronic docket
(EDIS) at htip.Yedis usite. gov. Hearing-impaired persons are advised that information on this
matter can be obtained by contacting the Commission’s TDD terminal on (202) 205-18110).

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: The Commission instituted Inv. No, 337-TA-613 on
September 11, 2007, based on a complaint filed by InterDigital Communications Corp. of King of
Prussia, Pennsylvania and [nterDigital Technology Corp. of Wilmington, Dielaware {(collectively,
“InterDigital™) on August 7, 2007. The complaint, as amended, alleged violations of Section 337
of the Tarift Act of 1930 (19 U.5.C. § 1337) in the importation into the United States, the sale for
importation, and the sale within the United States after importation of certain 3G mobile handsets
and components by reason of infringement of certain claims of 1.5, Patent Nos. 7,117,004 {“the



‘004 patent™); 7,190,966 (“the ‘966 patent™); and 7,286,847 (“the ‘847 patent”) (“the Power
Ramp-Up Patents); and 6,693,579 (“the 579 patent). The notice of investigation named Nokia
Corporation of Finland and Nokia Inc. of Irving, Texas (collectively, “Nokia”) as respondents.

On August 14, 2009, the ALJ issued his final ID, finding no violation of Section 337. In
particular, he found that the asserted claims of the patents-in-suit are not infringed and that they
are not invalid. The ALJ further found that a domestic industry exists with respect to the patents-
in-suit. Additionally, the ALJ found that there is no prosecution laches relating to the ‘004, ‘966,
and ‘847 patents and that the ‘579 patent is enforceable. The ALIJ further found that there is no
waiver and patent misuse with respect to the patents-in-suit. The ALJ also issued a
Recommended Determination on remedy and bonding, recommending that, in the event a
violation of Section 337 is found, the appropriate remedy is a limited exclusion order barring
entry of infringing 3G mobile handsets and components thereof and that it would also be
appropriate to issue various cease and desist orders. The ALJ also recommended that there is no
evidence to support the issuance of a bond during the period of Presidential review.

On August 31, 2009, InterDigital filed a petition for review, challenging certain aspects of
the final ID, and Nokia filed a contingent petition for review, challenging other aspects of the final
ID. On September 8, 2009, Nokia filed a response to InterDigital’s petition for review, and
InterDigital filed a response to Nokia’s contingent petition for review. The Commission
investigative attorney filed a joint response to both InterDigital’s and Nokia’s petitions on
September 8, 2009.

Having examined the record of this investigation, including the ALJ’s final ID, the
petitions for review, and the responses thereto, the Commission has determined to review the
subject ID in part. Specifically, the Commission has determined to review the ALJ’s claim
construction of the terms “synchronize,” found in claims 5, 6, 9, and 11 of the ‘847 patent, and
“access signal,” found in claim 59 of the ‘004 patent and claims 6, 9, and 11 of the ‘847 patent.
The Commission has also determined to review the ALJ’s validity determinations with respect to
the four asserted patents. On review, we affirm the ALJ’s determination of no violation, but take
no position with regard to the term “synchronize” and validity.

In addition, the Commission modifies the ALJ’s construction of “access signal” to clarify
that his construction does not read out the situation where the “access signal” may continue to be
transmitted after the power ramp-up procedure ends. The ID limits the transmission of the
“access signal” to the power ramp-up procedure, finding the transmission does not continue
during the remainder of the call setup process. The Commission agrees that the “access signal” is
transmitted during the power ramp-up procedure and that the “access signal” is a separate
transmission from any other call set up messages that a subscriber unit pursuant to the Power
Ramp-Up Patents transmits to a base station during a communication event. The Commission
finds, however, that the ‘004 and ‘847 patents do not require that the transmission of the “access
signal” ends when the power ramp-up procedure ends.

The Commission has determined not to review the remaining issues decided in the ID.
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The authority for the Commission’s determination is contained in section 337 of the Tariff
Act of 1930, as amended (19 U.S.C. § 1337), and in section 210.42 of the Commission’s Rules of
Practice and Procedure (19 C.F.R. § 210.42).

By order of the Commission.

Marilyn R. Abbott
Secretary to the Commission

Issued: October 16, 2009
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PUBLIC VERSION

UNITED STATES INTERNATIONAL TRADE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C.
In the Matter of }
)
CERTAIN 3G MOBILE HANDSETS AND ) Investigation No. 337-TA-613
COMPOMNENTS }
)

Final Initial and Recommended Determinations

This is the administrative law judge’s Final Initial Determination under Commission rule
210.42. The administrative law judge, after a review of the record developed, finds inter alia that
there 15 junisdiction and that there is no violation of section 337 of the Tanff Act of 1930, as
amended.

This is also the administrative law judge’s Recommended Determination on remedy and
bonding, pursuant to Commission rules 210.36(a) and 210.42(a)(1)(ii). Should the Commission
find a violation, the administrative law judge recommends the issuance of a limited exclusion
order barring entry into the United States of infringing 3G mobile handsets and components
thereof as well as the isspance of appropriate cease and desist orders. The imposition of any

bond during the Presidential Review period is not recommended.
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OPINION
L Procedural History

Complainants InterDigital Communications, LLC and InterDigital Technology
Corporation (InterDigital) filed a complaint against respondents Nokia Corporation and Nokia
Inc. (Nokia) on August 7, 2008, and said investigation was instituted on September 11, 2007,
with the scope of investigation limited to U.S. Patent Nos. 7,117,004 (‘004 patent) and 7,190,966
(‘966 patent). See Notice of Investigation, Inv. No. 337-TA-613, 72 Fed. Reg. 51838. Order No.
3 (unreviewed) which issued on October 11, 2007 added U.S. Patent No. 6,973,579 (the ‘579
patent). In Order No. 4, which issued on October 11, 2007, the administrative law judge set a
fifteen month target date of December 11, 2008, which meant that any final initial determination
should be filed by September 11, 2008.

On October 5, 2007, the Nokia respondents moved to cohsolidate Inv. No. 337-TA-601!
and this investigation (Inv. No. 337-TA-613) based on alleged efficiencies that would result from
consolidation and the “prejudice” Nokia would suffer if Inv. No. 337-TA-601 were to proceed
without Nokia’s ability to participate. The Samsung respondents in Inv. No. 337-TA-601 filed a
similar motion several days later. After lengthy arguments at a preliminary conference in the 613
investigation, the administrative law judge consolidated the two investigations. See Order Nos. 5
(Inv. No. 337-TA-613) and 11 (Inv. No. 337-TA-601) (both issued on October 24, 2007).

On November 9, 2007, Order No. 9 (unreviewed), which added U.S. Patent No.

7,286,847 (‘847 patent), issued.

' Complainants had filed an initial complaint in Inv. No. 337-TA-601 against Samsung
Electronics America, Inc., Samsung Telecommunications America, LLC, and Samsung
Electronics Co., Ltd. (Samsung), on March 23, 2007, and this investigation was instituted on
April 27, 2007. See Notice of Investigation, Inv. No. 337-TA-601, 72 Fed. Reg. 21049. Order
No. 29, which issued on February 6, 2009 in the 601 investigation granted a joint motion to
terminate Inv. No. 337-TA-601 in its entirety based on a settlement agreement (non-review on
February 24, 2009.)



On December 4, 2007, approximately six weeks after the administrative law judge
consolidated Inv. No. 337-TA-601 and Inv. No. 337-TA-613, Nokia moved to terminate or stay
the consolidated investigation as to Nokia, based on an alleged right to arbitrate a license
defense. The administrative law judge thereafter denied said motion of Nokia. Nokia then filed
a complaint in the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of New York and simultaneously
sought a preliminary injunction to prevent InterDigital from proceeding against Nokia at the
Commission based on the same alleged arbitration right previously rejected by the administrative
law judge. District Court Judge Deborah Batts thereafter granted Nokia’s requested preliminary
injunction and issued an order requiring InterDigital to file a motion to stay the consolidated
investigation against Nokia by April 11, 2008, and thereafter requiring InterDigital to take no
action against Nokia with respect to InterDigital’s infringement allegations in the consolidation
investigation. In compliance with Judge Batts’ order, InterDigital filed Motion No. 613-60 to
stay the consolidated investigation as to Nokia on April 11.

Order No. 31, which issued on April 14, 2008, suspended an April 21, 2008 date for
commencement of the evidentiary hearing in the consolidated investigation. Order No. 33, which
issued on May 16, 2008 granted complainants” Motion No. 613-62 to separate previously
consolidated Inv. No. 337-TA-601 and 337-TA-613 and further granted complainants’ Motion
No. 613-60 to stay the portion of the consolidated investigation relating to Nokia, viz. 337-TA-
613.

Order No. 36 which issued on September 25, 2008, lifted the stay of complainants in 337-
TA-613 imposed by Order No. 33. Order No. 37, which issued on October 7, 2008, set hearing
dates of May 26, 27, 28 and 29, 2009. Order No. 38, which issued on October 10, 2008, set a

target date of December 14, 2009 which meant that any final initial determination on violation



should be filed no later than August 14, 2009.

Order No. 42 which issued on March 10, 2009, granted complainants’ Motion No. 601-71
that complainants’ licensing activities in the United States satisfied the domestic industry
requirement of 19 U.S.C. § 1737(a)(3)(c). The Commission on April 9, 2009, determined not to
review said order.

At the prehearing conference, the administrative law judge denied complainants’ Motion
No. 613-82 to compel Nokia to produce certain licenses. (Tr. at 38.) He also denied in part
Nokia’s Motion In Limine No. 613-82 regarding a Lucas reference and reserved a ruling as to
admissibility of evidence as it relates to said motion and complainants’ Motion In Limine No.
613-78. (Tr. at 39-42.)

An evidentiary hearing in this investigation was held on May 26, 27, 28, 29 and June 2.
In.issue, inter alia were alleged infringement of claims 1, 2, 31 and 59 of the ‘004 patent, claims
1,3,8,9and 11 of the ‘966 patent and claims 5, 6,9 and 11 of the ‘847 patent as well as alleged
infringement of claims 1, 3 and 4 of the ‘579 patent.

The matter is now ready for a final decision.

The Final Initial and Recommended Determinations are based on the record compiled at
the hearing and the exhibits admitted into evidence. The administrative law judge has also taken
into account his observation of the witnesses who appeared before him during the hearing.
Proposed findings of fact submitted by the parties not herein adopted, in the form submitted or in
substance, are rejected as either not supported by the evidence or as involving immaterial matters
and/or as irrelevant. Certain findings of fact included herein have references to supporting
evidence in the record. Such references are intended to serve as guides to the testimony and

exhibits supporting the finding of fact. They do not necessarily represent complete summaries of



the evidence supporting said findings.
I1. Jurisdiction Including Parties And Importation

The private parties in this investigation are identified in the findings. See FF-1-8 in
Section X, infra. Nokia acknowledges that the respondents have “imported various models of the
accused products into the United States and that InterDigital has alleged infringement of its
patents by these products.” (SPFF II.1 (undisputed).) Nokia and InterDigital have also stipulated
that:

1. Nokia employees have used the N-75, N-95, 6555,
6750 and 6350 handsets, which are manufactured by
Nokia, to initiate phone calls in a 3G WCDMA
network within the United States, since October 23,
2007, the date InterDigital moved in this matter to
file its Second Amended Complaint.

2. Nokia has imported into the United States the N-75,
N-95, 6555, 6750 and 6350 handsets.

3. Nokia has imported additional handsets into the
United States, which handsets have the capability of
operating in a 3G WCDMA network. These
handsets include N-95-8GB, E66, E71, N78, 6650,
6690, 3555, N83, N79 and 6263.

(SX-2.) Moreover Nokia acknowledges that “the Commission has subject matter jurisdiction
[over] this investigation. (SPFF I1.3 (undisputed).) In addition, the Commission has personal
jurisdiction over said respondents in this investigation because said respondents have participated

fully in said investigation, including participation in discovery and motion practice. See Certain

Audible Alarm Devices For Divers, Inv. No. 337-TA-365, Initial Determination, 1995 ITC

LEXIS 66 at *3 (Feb. 2, 1995).
I1I. The Products In Issue

The accused Nokia handset models that InterDigital accuses of infringement of the power
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ramp-up patents include the Nokia model numbers identified in Section II supra.

With specific regard to the ‘579 patent, InterDigital accuses Nokia handsets that utilize
the{ } (SPFF 1.9, CFF 3.9 (all (undisputed).)
IV.  The Power Ramp-Up Patents (‘004, ‘966 And ‘847 Patents)

The 004 patent in issue is titled “Method and Subscriber Unit for Performing an Access
Procedure.” (CX-1 at ITC-COMP00005644.) The ‘004 patent issued on October 3, 2006. (CX-1
at ITC-COMP00005644.) The inventors of the ‘004 patent are Gary Lomp and Fatih Ozluturk.
(CX-1 at ITC-COMP00005644.) The ‘004 patent is based on Patent Application Serial No.
10/866,851 filed on June 14, 2004. (CX-1 at ITC-COMP00005644.) The 004 patent claims
priority to Application No. 08/670,162, which was filed on June 27, 1996, and matured into U.S.
Patent No. 5,841,768. (CX-1 at ITC-COMP00005644.) The ‘004 patent has 18 independent
claims and 48 dependent claims. (CX-1 at ITC-COMP00005661 - ITC-COMP00005665.)
InterDigital is the owner by assigﬁment of the entire right, title, and interest in and to the ‘004
patent. (CX-6.)

The ‘966 patent in issue is titled “Method and Apparatus for Performing an Access
Procedure.” (CX-2 at ITC-COMP00016933.) The 966 patent issued on March 13, 2007. (CX-2
at ITC-COMP00016933.) The named inventors on the ‘966 patent are Gary Lomp and Fatih
Ozluturk. (CX-2 at ITC-COMP00016933.) The ‘966 patent is based on Patent Application Serial
No. 11/169,490 filed on June 29, 2005. (CX-2 at ITC-COMP00016933.) The 966 patent claims
priority to Application No. 08/670,162, which was filed on June 27, 1996, and matured into U.S.
Patent No. 5,841,768. (CX-2 at ITC-COMP00016933.) The ‘966 patent resulted from a

continuation of the application that led to the asserted ‘004 patent. (CX-2 at




ITC-COMP00016933.) The ‘966 patent has 1 independent claim and 11 dependent claims.
(CX-2 at ITC-COMP00016950 - ITC-COMP00016951.) InterDigital is the owner by assignment
of the entire right, title, and interest in and to the ‘966 patent. (CX-6.)

The 847 patent is titled “Method and Apparatus for Performing an Access Procedure.”
(CX-3 at ITC-COMP00021139.) The ‘847 patent issued on October 23, 2007. (CX-3 at
ITC-COMP00021139.) The named inventors on the ‘847 patent are Fatih Ozluturk and Gary
Lomp. (CX-3 at ITC-COMP00021139.) The ‘847 patent is based on Patent Application Serial
No. 11/169,425 filed on June 29, 2005. (CX-3 at ITC-COMP00021139.) The ‘847 patent claims
priority to Application No. 08/670,162, which was filed on June 27, 1996, and matured into U.S.
Patent No. 5,841,768. (CX-3 at ITC-COMP00021139.) The ‘847 patent resulted from a
continuation of the application that led to the asserted ‘004 patent. (CX-3 at
ITC-COMP00021139.) The 847 patent has 11 independent claims and 0 dependent claims.
(CX-3"at ITC-COMP00021157 - ITC-COMP00021160.) InterDigital is the owner by assignment
of the entire right, title, and interest in and to the ‘847 patent. (CX-6.)

Each of the power ramp-up patents, viz., the ‘004 patent (CX-1), the ‘966 patent (CX-2),
and the ‘847 patent (CX-3), share a common specification, and said éommon specification
discloses an initial access procedure for a CDMA (Code Division Multiple Access) system. (CFF

2.84, 2.85 (undisputed).)* Thus, each of the applications for the ‘966 and ‘847 patents, viz.

%2 The administrative law judge will cite to only the ‘004 patent, CX-1, when referencing
the common specification. Moreover the administrative law judge will refer to the ‘004, ‘966
and ‘847 patent as the power ramp-up patents. Complainants refer to said patents as the power
ramp-up patents. (e.g., CBr at 18.) Neither the respondents nor the staff have objected to that
designation. Also respondents’ expert Lanning has referred to said three patents as the power
ramp-up patents. (Tr. at 1606-07.)



Application Ser. Nos. 11/169,490 and 11/169,425, are continuations of the application for the
‘004 patent, application Ser. No. 10/866,851. (CX-2 at ITC-COMP00016933; CX-3 at ITC-
COMP00021139.) Each of the three power ramp-up patents list InterDigital Technology
Corporation, Wilmington, DE (US) as the Assignee. (CX-1 at ITC-COMP00005644; CX-2 at
- ITC-COMP00016933; CX-3 at ITC-COMP00021139.) For the purpose of claim construction,
the parties have treated the power ramp-up patents collectively. (See, generally, CBr at 30-56;
RBr at Sec. I1, p. 2 to Sec. II, p. 20; SBr at 7-35.) The administrative law judge in his “Claim
Construction” infra has done the same.
A. Undisputed Facts

Pursuant to a joint stipulation of the private parties, the following has been stipulated to
as an overview of the te‘chnology involved in this investigation as the technology relates to the

power ramp-up patents, viz. the ‘004, ‘966 and ‘847 patents in issue.

" 1. A typical cellular system (network) architecture consists of many

separate transmission and reception areas referred to as cells. Each
cell has a base station (BS) that is capable of communicating with
many mobiles in its radio coverage area. A mobile is sometimes
referred to as a mobile phone, user equipment (UE), cell phone,
handset, or subscriber unit (SU).

2. A cellular system uses predefined radio frequency bands that are
shared by all base stations and mobiles. There are a number of
technical methods that are used to provide simultaneous access by
all the base stations and the mobiles in each allocated frequency
band. These methods are known as multiple access. The multiple
access (MA) method used in the '004 Patent Family is Code
Division Multiple Access (CDMA) which means that different
codes are used by the base stations and mobiles to define the

different system channels to be used for control and
communication. See 1:24-25; 151-58; 1:66-67 and 2:11-16.

3. Mobile phones commonly move to different locations in a



cellular system and must be able to communicate with any BS in a
cellular system. Therefore, cellular systems have a number of basic
procedures that are used by a mobile to synchronize with a local
base station, notify it of its existence and to receive and originate
calls. The applicable procedures include synchronization, random
access, and channel assignment.

4. After being powered up, a mobile must synchronize to a
reference signal transmitted from a BS in order to receive signals
from the BS and allow the BS to receive the signals sent by the
mobile. See 5:13-15; 5:57-59. A mobile synchronizes to a specific
BS by aligning its receiver with at least one reference signal that is
transmitted by the BS. See 5:54-59; 5:13-15: 7:54-57; Fig. 6A (step
150).

5. Mobiles wishing to originate or receive a call must first be
detected by the BS. Mobiles are detected by a specific BS when the
mobile performs a random access procedure.

6. The transmission power of the mobile causes interference to
other mobiles and base stations. See 2:17-18; 2:21-26. Greater
transmission power is required the further the mobile is from the
base station. Id. Also, greater transmission power may be required
to overcome interference fiom other users, noise, or other channel
characteristics. 2:39-42.

7. Power control is important for a CDMA system because all
transmissions use the same frequency band such that each
transmission is interference (noise) to the other transmissions.
2:15-18; 5:62-63. A power level that is too high causes excess
interference with other users and may disrupt communications.
2:44-48; 5:63-65. A power level that is too low will not be detected
by the base station. 2:48-50; 5:65-67.

8. Power overshoot occurs when the tnmsmit power of a mobile
exceeds the power level necessary for detection by the BS.
7:26-34; Figs. 5 and 7 (showing overshoot above detection level).
(SX-4 at 1-2 (emphasis added).)
B. Experts

Branimir Vojcic was qualified as complainants’ expert in the field of wireless



communications and CDMA. (Tr. at 286-87.)

Mark Lanning was qualified as respondents’ expert in cellular network architecture,
handset operation and architecture and mobile telephony. (Tr. at 1567-68.)

Steve Kinney was qualified as respondents’ expert in the field of mobile telephony and
mobile cellular communications. (Tr. at 1741.)

C. Person Of Ordinary Skill In The Art

Vojcic testified that the level of ordinary skill in the field of CDMA and wireless
communications during the time period from 1996 to the present would be a Bachelor’s of
Science degree in electrical engineering with four to five years of experience. (Tr. at 287-8.)

Lanning and Kenney testified that the person of ordinary skill in the art is a person with a
Bachelor’s or Master’s level degree in electrical engineering, computer science, or mathematics
with four years of experience in telecommunications, with two‘years of that experience being in
the field of CDMA commﬁﬁications. (Tr. at 1715-1716, 1770.) Kenney also testified that the
person of ordinary skill in the art could also be a person with a Ph.D. in electrical engineering or
a relate field one year of experience in CDMA communications. (Tr. at 1770.)

Based on the record from the evidentiary hearing iﬁcluding the testimony of the experts
the administrative law judge finds that the person of ordinary skill in the art for the power ramp-
up patents at the time of their filing would have at least a Bachelor’s degree in electrical
engineering, computer science or mathematics with some working experience in CDMA
communications, the amount of said experience dependent on the degree said person has.

D. Claims In Issue

Asserted claims 1, 2, 31 and 59 of the ‘004 patent read:



1. A method for performing power control in a wireless code
division multiple access communication system, the method
comprising: transmitting dynamically selected code signals at
increasing power levels until an acknowledgement is received
indicating that one of said dynamically selected code signals was
detected, wherein the transmitted dynamically selected code signals
carry no data; and in response to detecting the acknowledgment,
transmitting an access signal wherein the access signal is
associated with the dynamically selected code signals and each of
the dynamically selected code signals are shorter than the access
signal.

2. A wireless code division multiple access subscriber unit, the
subscriber unit comprising: a transmitter configured such that a
first code is transmitted at an initial power level wherein the first
code is of a first code type and the transmitter further configured to
repeatedly transmit dynamically selected codes of said first code
type at increasing power levels wherein the transmitted codes of
said first code type carry no data; a receiver configured such that an
acknowledgement is detected indicating a code of said first type
was received; and the transmitter configured such that in response
to detecting the acknowledgement, a signal having a second code is
transmitted to access a communication channel wherein the second
code is associated with the first code.

31. The method of claim 30° wherein said code of a first type is a

3 Unasserted claim 30, from which asserted claim 31 depends, reads:

A method performed by a code division multiple access
subscriber unit for establishing communications between the
subscriber unit and a base station, the method comprising:

(a) transmitting a code of a first type, wherein the code of the first
type does not include data of the subscriber unit;

(b) determining if the subscriber unit has received an
acknowledgement signal from the base station, the
acknowledgement signal being an indication to the subscriber unit
that the base station has received a code of the first type;

(c) repeating (a) at increasing power levels until the subscriber unit
has received the acknowledgement signal; and

(d) transmitting a code of a second type after it is determined that
the subscriber unit has received the acknowledgement signal.
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dynamically selected code associated with said code of a second
type.

59. A subscriber unit for performing an access procedure for
establishing communications between said subscriber unit and a
base station, said subscriber unit comprising: a processor
configured to control a transmitter such that the transmitter
transmits a first one of a plurality of different codes by said
subscriber unit to said base station; a receiver configured to receive
an acknowledgement wherein if said acknowledgement is not
received, the processor configured to control the transmitter such
that the transmitter transmits another one of the plurality of
different codes by said subscriber unit to said base station; the
processor configured to control said transmitter such that said
transmitter repeats the transmitting of another one of the plurality
of different codes until said acknowledgement is received by said
subscriber unit from said base station, said acknowledgement
indicating to said subscriber unit that said base station has received
at least one of said different codes; and said processor configured
to control the transmitter such that the transmitter transmits, in
response to receipt of said acknowledgement, an access signal to
facilitate communication initialization between said subscriber,
unit and said base station, said access signal as transmitted by said
subscriber unit and said different codes as transmitted by said
subscriber unit each being a function of a same code.

(CX-1 at 10:62-11:24, 14:27-29, 16:65-17:25.)
Asserted claims 1, 3, 8, 9 and 11 of the ‘966 patent read:

1. A wireless code division multiple access (CDMA) subscriber
unit comprising: a transmitter configured such that, when the
subscriber unit is first accessing a CDMA network and wants to
establish communications with a base station associated with the
network over a communication channel to be indicated by the base
station, the transmitter successively transmits signals until the
subscriber unit receives from the base station an indication that a
transmitted one of the signals has been detected by the base station,
wherein each transmission of one of the signals by the transmitter
is at an increased power level with respect to a prior transmission
of one of the signals; the transmitter further configured such that

(CX-1 at 14:8-26.)
11



the transmitter transmits to the base station a message indicating to
the base station that the subscriber unit wants to establish the
communications with the base station over the communication
channel to be indicated by the base station, the message being
transmitted only subsequent to the subscriber unit receiving the
indication, wherein each of the successively transmitted signals and
the message are generated using a same code; and wherein each of
the successively transmitted signals is shorter than the message.

3. The subscriber unit of claim 1 wherein some of the transmitted
signals are different.

8. The subscriber unit of claim 1 wherein the transmitter is further
configured to transmit the signals such that there is a uniform
decibel power level increase between the successively transmitted
signals.

9. The subscriber unit of claim 1 wherein the communication
channel is indicated by the base station in response to the message.

11. The subscriber unit of claim 1 wherein the transmitter is further
configured such that, subsequent to the subscriber unit receiving
the indication, the transmitter tranismits a message uniquely
identifying the subscriber unit to the base station.

(CX-2 at 10:62-11:19, 11:22-23, 12:8-14, 12:17-21.)
Asserted claims 5, 6, 9 and 11 of the ‘847 patent read:

5. A wireless code division multiple access (CDMA) subscriber
unit comprising: a circuit configured to receive and down convert
radio frequency signals to produce baseband signals, the baseband
signals including a pilot signal and a paging message, the paging
message being associated with the subscriber unit, wherein the
circuit is further configured to synchronize to the pilot signal and
demodulate the paging message; and a transmitter configured such
that, when the subscriber unit is first accessing a CDMA network
and wants to establish communications with a base station
associated with the network over a communication channel to be
indicated by the base station, the transmitter successively transmits
signals until the subscriber unit receives from the base station an
indication that a transmitted one of the signals has been detected by
the base station, wherein each transmission of one of the signals by
the transmitter, other than a transmission of a first one of the

12



signals, is at an increased power level with respect to a prior
transmission of another one of the signals; the transmitter further
configured such that the transmitter transmits to the base station a
message indicating to the base station that the subscriber unit
wants to establish the communications with the base station over
the communication channel to be indicated by the base station, the
message being transmitted only subsequent to the subscriber unit
receiving the indication, wherein the successively transmitted
signals and the message are generated using a same code.

6. A method for use in a code division multiple access subscriber
unit for establishing communications between said subscriber unit
and a base station, said method comprising: synchronizing to a
pilot signal transmitted by said base station; after said
synchronizing to the pilot signal, transmitting a plurality of
different codes by said subscriber unit to said base station wherein
each one of the plurality of different codes, other than a first one of
the plurality of different codes, is transmitted at an increased power
level with respect to a prior transmission of another one of the
plurality of different codes; receiving an acknowledgement by said
subscriber unit from said base station and ceasing transmitting the
plurality of different codes, said acknowiedgement indicating to
said subscriber unit that said base station-has received at least one
of said plurality of different codes; and transmitting, in response to
receipt of said acknowledgement, an access signal to facilitate
communication initialization between said subscriber unit and said
base station, said access signal as transmitted by said subscriber
unit, and said plurality of different codes, as transmitted by said
subscriber unit, being a function of a same code.

9. A method for use in a code division multiple access subscriber
unit for establishing communications between said subscriber unit
and a base station, said method comprising: (a) recetving radio
frequency signals; (b) down converting the received radio
frequency signals to produce baseband signals, the baseband
signals include a pilot signal and a paging message, the paging
message being associated with the subscriber unit; (c)
synchronizing to the pilot signal; (d) demodulating the paging
message; (e) after said demodulating the paging message and said
synchronizing to the pilot signal, transmitting a first one ofa
plurality of different codes by said subscriber unit to said base
station; (f) if an acknowledgement is not received, transmitting
another one of the plurality of different codes by said subscriber

13



unit to said base station; (g) repeating step (f) until an
acknowledgement is received by said subscriber unit from said
base station, said acknowledgement indicating.to said subscriber
unit that said base station has received at least one of said different
codes; and (h) transmitting, in response to receipt of said
acknowledgement, an access signal to facilitate communication
initialization between said subscriber unit and said base station,
said access signal, as transmitted by said subscriber unit, and said
different codes, as transmitted by said subscriber unit, being a
function of a same code.

11. A subscriber unit for performing an access procedure for
establishing communications between said subscriber unit and a
base station, said subscriber unit comprising: a circuit configured
to synchronize to a pilot signal transmitted by the base station
wherein, the circuit is further configured to re-synchronize to the
pilot signal if the subscriber unit becomes unsynchronized to the
pilot signal during an idle period; a processor configured to control
a transmitter such that the transmitter transmits a first one of a
plurality of different codes by said subscriber unit to said base
station; a receiver configured to receive an acknowledgement
wherein if said acknowledgement is not received, the processor:is
configured to control the transmitter such that'the transmitter
transmits another one of the plurality of different codes by said
subscriber unit to said base station; the processor configured to
control said transmitter such that said transmitter repeats the
transmitting of another one of the plurality of different codes until
said acknowledgement is received by said subscriber unit from said
base station, said acknowkdgement [sic] indicating to said
subscriber unit that said base station has received at least one of
said different codes; and said processor further configured to
control the transmitter such that the transmitter transmits, in
response to receipt of said acknowledgement, an access signal to
facilitate communication initialization between said subscriber unit
and said base station, said access signal as transmitted by said
subscriber unit, and said plurality of different codes, as transmitted
by said subscriber unit, being a function of a same code.

(CX-3 at 12:31-13:23, 14:7-36, 14:65-16:14.)

E. Claim Construction

Claim construction is a question of law. Markman v. Westview Instruments, Inc., 52 F.3d
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967, 979 (Fed. Cir. 1995) (en banc), aff’d, 517 U.S. 370 (1996) (Markman); see Cybor Corp. v.

FAS Techs., Inc., 138 F.3d 1448, 1455 (Fed. Cir. 1998). In constﬁruing claims, a court should

look to intrinsic evidence consisting of the language of the claims, the specification and the
prosecution history as it “is the most significant source of the legally operative meaning of

disputed claim language.” Vitronics Corp. v. Conceptronic, Inc., 90 F.3d 1576, 1582 (Fed. Cir.

1996) (Vitronics); see Bell Atl. Network Servs., Inc. v. Covad Comme’n. Group, Inc., 262 F.3d

1258, 1267 (Fed. Cir. 2001). Claim construction is a matter of resolution of disputed meanings
and technical scope, to clarify and, when necessary, to explain what the patentee covered by the

claims” See U.S. Surgical Corp. v. Ethicon, Inc., 103 F.3d 1554, 1568 (Fed. Cir. 1997).

The claims themselves “provide substantial guidance as to the meaning of particular
claim terms.” Phillips v. AWH Corp., 415 F.3d 1303, 1314 (Fed. Cir. 2005) (Phillips), citing
Vi‘[;ronics, 90 F.3d at 1582. It is essential to consider a claim as a whole when construing each
term, because the context in which a term is used in a claim ;‘can be };ighly instructive.” Id. In
construing claims, the administrative law judge should first look “to the words of the claims
themselves . . . to define the scope of the patented invention.” Vitronics., 90 F.3d at 1582; see
generally Phillips, 415 F.3d at 1312-13. Claim terms “are generally given their ordinary and

accustomed meaning.” Vitronics, 90 F.3d at 1582. Moreover, each term of a claim should be

given its own meaning. See Merck & Co. v. Teva Pharm., USA, Inc., 395 F.3d 1364, 1372 (Fed.
Cir. 2005), cert. denied 546 U.S. 972 (2005). (Merck & Co.) (A claim construction that gives

meaning to all the terms of the claim is preferred over one that does not do so.”).

In Pause Technology. Inc. v. T.V., Inc., 419 F.3d 1326 (Fed. Cir. 2005) the Court stated:

... in clarifying the meaning of claim terms, courts are free to use
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words that do not appear in the claim so long as “the resulting
claim interpretation . . . accord[s] with the words chosen by the
patentee to stake out the boundary of the claimed property.” Cf.
Renishaw PLC v. Marposs Societa per Azioni, 158 F.3d 1243,
1248 (Fed. Cir. 1998) (noting that “[w]ithout any claim term
susceptible to clarification . . . there is no legitimate way to narrow
the property right”).

Id. at 1333. Also, claim terms are presumed to be used consistently throughout the patent, such
that the usage of the term in one claim can often illuminate the meaning of the same term in other

claims. Research Plastics, Inc. v. Federal Packaging Corp., 421 F.3d 1290, 1295 (Fed. Cir. 2005)

(Research Plastics).

The ordinary meaning of a claim term may be determined by reviewing a variety of
sources, which may include the claims themselves, dictionaries and treatises, the written

. description, the drawings and the prosecution history. Ferguson Beauregard/Logic Controls v.

Mega Sys., LLC, 350 F.3d 1327, 1338 (Fed. Cir. 2003). “Dictionaries...are often useful to assist

in understanding the commonly understood meaning of words and have been used both by our
court and the Supreme Court in claim interpretation.” Phillips, 415 F.3d at 1322. The use of a
dictionary, however, may extend patent protection beyond what should properly be afforded by a
patent. Also, there is no guarantee that a term is used in the same way in a treatise as it would be
by a patentee. Id. Moreover, the presumption of ordinary meaning will be “rebutted if the
inventor has disavowed or disclaimed scope of coverage, by using words or expressions of

manifest exclusion or restriction, representing a clear disavowal of claim scope.” ACTV, Inc. v.

Walt Disney Co., 346 F.3d 1082, 1091 (Fed. Cir. 2003).

The presence of a specific limitation in a dependent claim raises a presumption that the

limitation is not present in the independent claim. Phillips, 415 F.3d at 1315. This presumption
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is especially strong when the only difference between the independent and dependent claims is

the limitation in dispute. SunRace Roots Enter. Co.. Ltd. v. SRAM Corp., 336 F.3d 1298, 1303

(Fed. Cir. 2003). Moreover, “claim differentiation takes on relevance in the context of a claim
construction that would rénder additional, or different, language in another independent claim
superfluous.” AllVoice Computing PLC v. Nuance Comme’ns, Inc., 504 F.3d 1236, 2007 U.S.
App. LEXIS 23949, at *23 (Fed. Cir. 2007). In addition, a claim construction that gives meaning
to all the terms of a claim is preferred over one that does not do so. See Merck & Co. 395 F.3d at

1372; Alza Corp. v. Mylan Labs. Inc., 391 F.3d 1365, 1370 (Fed. Cir. 2004) (Alza) (affirming

the district court’s rejection of both parties’ claim construction where those constructions meant
that “the inclusion of the word ‘base’ in the claims would be redundant”). Differences between
the cleims are helpful in understanding the meaning of claim terms. Phillips, 415 F.3d at.1314.

The preamble of a claim may be significant in interpreting a claim. Thus, “a claim

preamble has the import that the claim as a whole suggests for it.” Bell Commc’ns Research, Inc.
v. Vitalink Commc’ns Corp., 55 F.3d 615, 620, 34 U.S.P.Q.2d 1816, 1820 (Fed. Cir. 1995). If
said preamble, when read in the context of an entire claim, recites limitations of the claim, or if
the claim preamble is “necessary to give life, meaning, and vitality” to the claim, then the claim

preamble should be construed as if in the balance of the claim. Kropa v. Robie, 187 F.2d 150,

152 (CCPA 1951) (Kropa); see also Rowe v. Dror, 112 F.3d 473, 478 (Fed. Cir. 1997) (Rowe);

Corning Glass Works v. Sumitomo Elec. U.S.A., Inc., 868 F.2d 1251, 1257 (Fed. Cir. 1989)
(Corning Glass). Indeed, when discussing the “claim” in such a circumstance, there is no
meaningful distinction to be drawn between the claim preamble and the rest of the claim, for only

together do they comprise the “claim.” If, however, the body of the claim fully and intrinsically
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sets forth the complete invention, including all of its limitations, and the preamble offers no
distinct definition of any of the claimed invention’s limitations, but rather merely states, for
example, the purpose or intended use of the invention, then the preamble may have no
significance to claim construction because it cannot be said to constitute or explain a claim
limitation. See Rowe, 112 F.3d at 478; Corning Glass, 868 F.2d at 1257; Kropa, 187 F.2d at 152.

In Pitney Bowes Inc. v. Hewlett-Packard Co., 182 F.3d 1298, 1306 (Fed. Cir. 1999)

(Pitney Bowes), the preamble statement that the patent claimed a method of or apparatus for
“producing on a photoreceptor an image of generated shapes made up of spots” was not merely a
statement describing the invention’s intended field of use. Instead, the Court found that said
statement was intimately meshed with the ensuing language in the claim; and that, for example,
both independent claims concluded with the clause “whereby the appearance of smoothed edges
are given to the generated shapes.” Id. Because this was the first appearance in the claim body of
the term “generated shapes,” the Court found that the term could only be understood in the
context of the preamble statement “producing on a photoreceptor an image of generated shapes
made up of spots.” Id. Similarly, the Court found that the term “spots” was initially used in the
preamble to refer to the elements that made up the image of generated shapes that were produced
on the photoreceptor; that the term “spots” then appeared twice in each of the independent
cléims; and that the claim term “spots” referred to the components that together made up the
images of generated shapes on the photoreceptor and was only discernible from the claim
preamble. Id. The Court concluded that in such a case, it was essential that the preamble and the
remainder of the claim be construed as one unified and internally consistent recitation of the

claimed invention. Id.
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The specification of a patent “acts as a dictionary” bbth “when it expressly defines terms
used in the claims™ and “when it defines terms by implication.” Vitronics, 90 F.3d at 1582. For
example, the specification “may define claim terms by implication such that the meaning may be
found in or ascertained by a reading of the patent documents.” Phillips, 415 F.3d at 1323 quoting

Iredto Access, Inc. v. Echostar Satellite Corp., 383 F.3d 1295, 1300 (Fed. Cir. 2004).

Importantly, a person of ordinary skill in the art is deemed to read the claim term not only in the
context of the particular claim in which the disputed term appears, but in the context of the entire
patent, including the specification. Phillips, 415 F.3d at 1314. Whatever ambiguity may exist
with respect to the claim language may be resolved by an examination of the specification.

Teleflex, Inc. v. Ficosa N. Am. Corp., 299 F.3d 1313, 1325 (Fed. Cir. 2002) (“The specification

may assist in resolving ambiguity where the ordinary and accustomed meaning of the words used
in the claims lack sufficient clarity to permit the scope of the claim to be ascertained from the
words alone.”)

A patentee may deviate from the conventional meaning of a particular claim term by
making the intended meaning of a particular claim term clear (1) in the specification or (2) during
the patent’s prosecution history. Lear Siegler, Inc. v. Aeroquip Corp., 733 F.2d 881, 889 (Fed.
Cir. 1984). If using a definition that is contrary to the definition given by those of ordinary skill
in the art, however, the patentee’s specification must communicate a deliberate and clear
preference for the alternate definition. Kumar v. Ovonic Battery Co., Inc., 351 F.3d 1364, 1368

(Fed. Cir. 2003), citing Apple Computers, Inc. v. Articulate Sys., Inc., 234 F.3d 14, 21 n.5 (Fed.

Cir. 2000). In ascribing to an alternative definition rather than the ordinary meaning, the intrinsic

evidence must “clearly set forth” or “clearly redefine” a claim term so as to put one reasonably
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skilled in the art on notice that the patentee intended to so redefine the claim term. Bell Atl.
Network Servs.. Inc. v. Covad Communs. Group, Inc., 262 F.3d 1258, 1268 (Fed. Cir. 2001).
The prosecution history, including “the prior art cited,” is “part of the ‘intrinsic
evidence.”” Phillips, 415 F.3d at 1317. The prosecution history “provides evidence of how the
inventor and the PTO understood the patent.” Id. Thus, the prosecution history can often inform
the meaning of the claim language by demonstrating how an inventor understood the invention
and whether the inventor limited the invention in the course of prosecution, making the claim
scope narrower than it would be otherwise. Vitronics, 90 F.3d at 1582-83; see also Chimie v.

PPG Indus.. Inc., 402 F.3d 1371, 1384 (Fed. Cir. 2005) (“The purpose of consulting the

prosecution history in construing a claim is to exclude any interpretation that was disclaimed

during prosecution” quoting ZMI Corp. v. Cardiac Resuscitator Corp., 844 F.2d 1576, 1580 (Fed.

Cir. 1988)); Southwall Techs., Inc. v. Cardinal IG Co., F.3d 1570, 1576 (Fed. Cir. 1995); see also

Verizon Servs. Corp. v. Vonage Holdings Corp., 503 F.3d 1295, 1306 (Fed. Cir. 2007), citing

Microsoft Corp. v. Multi-tech Sys., Inc., 357 F.3d 1340, 1350 (Fed. Cir. 2004) (“We have held

that a statement made by the patentee during prosecution history of a patent in the same family as
the patent-in-suit can operate as a disclaimer.”) The Federal Circuit in Texas

Instruments Inc. v. U.S.LT.C., 988 F.2d 1165 (Fed. Cir. 1993), the stated:

As a general proposition, prosecution history estoppel is based
upon a showing that an applicant amended a claim to avoid a cited
prior art reference. ... Amendment of a claim in light of a prior art
reference, however, is not the sine qua non to establish prosecution
history estoppel. Unmistakable assertions made by the applicant to
the Patent and Trademark Office (PTO) in support of patentability,
whether or not required to secure allowance of the claim, also may
operate to preclude the patentee from asserting equivalency
between a limitation of the claim and a substituted structure or
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process step.

(emphasis added) Id. at 1174 (internal citations omitted); see also Forest Labs, Inc. v Abbott

Labs, 239 F.3d 1305, 1313-14 (stating that “arguments made during prosecution lead to the

conclusion that the claims should be limited to their literal scope”); Bayer AG v. Elan Pharm.

Corp., 212 F.3d 1241, 1252 (Fed. Cir. 2002); Wang Lab., Inc. v. Mitsubishi Elecs., Inc., 103 F.3d

1571, 1578 (Fed. Cir. 1997). The prosecution history includes any reexamination of the patent.

Intermatic Inc. v. Lamson & Sessions Co., 273 F.3d 1355, 1367 (Fed. Cir. 2001).

In addition to the intrinsic evidence, the adminiétrative law judge may consider extrinsic
evidence when interpreting the claims. Extrinsic evidence consists of all evidence external to the
patent and the prosecution history, including inventor testimony and expert testimony. This
extrinsic evidence may be helpful in explaining scientific principles, the meaning of technical
terms, and terms of art. Ses Vitronics, 90 F.3d at 1583; Markman, 52 F.3d at 980. However,
“[e]xtrinsic evidence is to be used for the court’s understanding of the patent, not for the purpose
of varying or contradicting the terms of the claims.” Markman, 52 F.3d at 981. Also, the Federal
Circuit has viewed extrinsic evidence in general as less reliable than the patent and its
prosecution history in determining how to read claim terms. Phillips, 415 F.3d at 1318. In
addition, while extrinsic evidence may be useful, it is unlikely to result in a reliable interpretation
of patent claim scope unless considered in the context of the intrinsic evidence. Phillips, 415

F.3d at 1319.

In Nystrom v. Trex Company, 424 F.3d 1136 (Fed. Cir. 2005), the Court stated:

... as explained in Phillips, Nystrom is not entitled to a claim
construction divorced from the context of the written description
and prosecution history. The written description and prosecution
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history consistently use the term “board” to refer to wood decking
materials cut from a log. Nystrom argues repeatedly that there 1s
no disavowal of scope of the written description or prosecution
history. Nystrom’s argument is misplaced. Phillips, 415 F.3d at
1321 (“The problem is that if the district court starts with the broad
dictionary definition in every case and fails to fully appreciate how
the specification implicitly limits that definition, the error will
systematically cause the construction of the claim to be unduly
expansive.”). What Phillips now counsels is that in the absence of
something in the written description and/or prosecution history to
provide explicit or implicit notice to the public—i.e., those of
ordinary skill in the art— that the inventor intended a disputed term
to cover more than the ordinary and customary meaning revealed
by the context of the intrinsic record, it is improper to read the term
to encompass a broader definition simply because it may be found
in a dictionary, treatise, or other extrinsic source. Id.

Id. at 1144-45. In Free Motion Fitness Inc. v. Cybex Int’l Inc., 423 F.3d 1343 (Fed. Cir. 2005),

the Court concluded that:

under Phillips, the rule that “a court will give a claim term the full
range of its ordinary meaning”, Rexnord Corp. v. Laitram Corp.,
274 F.3d 1336, 1342 (Fed.Cir. 2001), does not mean that the term
will presumptively receive its broadest dictionary definition or the
aggregate of multiple dictionary definitions. Phillips, 415 F.3d at
1320-1322. Rather, in those circumstances, where references to
dictionaries is appropriate, the task is to scrutinize the intrinsic
evidence in order to determine the most appropriate definition.

Id. at 1348-49. In Network Commerce, Inc. v. Microsoft Corp., 422 F.3d 1353 (Fed. Cir. 2005),
the Court concluded:

As we recently reaffirmed in Phillips, “conclusory, unsupported
assertions by experts as to the definition of a claim term are not
useful to a court.” Phillips, 415 F.3d at 1318. Here [expert]
Coombs does not support his conclusion [the “download
component” need not contain the boot program] with any
references to industry publications or other independent sources.
Moreover, expert testimony at odds with the intrinsic evidence
must be disregarded. Id. (“[A] court should discount any expert
testimony that is clearly at odds with the claim construction
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mandated by . . . the written record of the patent.” (internal
quotations and citation omitted). That is the case here.

Id. at 1361.

Patent claims should be construed so as to maintain their validity. However, that maxim
is limited to cases in which a court concludes, after applying all the available tools of claim
construction, that the claim is still ambiguous. Phillips, 415 F.3d at 1327. If the only reasonable

interpretation renders the claim invalid, then the claim should be found invalid. See, e.g., Rhine

v. Casio, Inc., 183 F.3d 1342, 1345 (Fed. Cir. 1999).

1. Whether U.S. Patent No. 5,799,010 Should Be Incorporated By Reference Into The
Power Ramp-Up Patents

A preliminary issue is whether U.S. Patent No. 5,799,010 (the ‘010 patent or CX-52)
should be incorporated by reference into the power ramp-up patents.

Complainants have argued that .‘dav,;)e,x ‘010 patent shoﬁld be incorporated by reference into
the common specification of the power rémp-up patents. Specifically, complainants argued that
the ‘010 patent is directly referenced twice in the common speciﬁcétion and indirectly referenced
in the common specification via incorporation of the priority ‘768 patent.* (CBr at 22.)

Complainants further argued that the original application for the ‘768 patent was amended to

identify the application which issued as the ‘010 patent by serial number. (CBr at 23, 28-29.)

* The application of the ‘004 patent is a continuation of application Ser. No. 10/400,343,
filed Mar. 26, 2003 now U.S. Pat. No. 6,839,567 which patent is a continuation of Ser. No.
10/086,320, filed Mar. 1, 2002, which issued on May 27, 2003 as U.S. Pat. No. 6,571,105, which
patent is a continuation of application Ser. No. 09/721,034, filed Nov. 22, 2000, which issued on
Dec. 10, 2002 as U.S. Pat. No. 6,493,563, which patent is a continuation of application Ser. No.
09/003,104, filed Jan. 6, 1998, which issued on Jan. 30, 2001 as U.S. Pat. No. 6,181,949, which
patent is a continuation of application Ser. No. 08/670,162, filed on Jun. 27, 1996, which issued
on Nov. 24, 1998 as U.S. Pat. No. 5,841,768 (the ‘768 patent, or CX-4). (CX-1 at ITC-
COMP00005644.)
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Complainants also argued that:

The first and second incorporation statements identify the

incorporated application not only by title and filing date, but also

by subject matter. This information uniquely identifies the ‘010

patent without reference to the application serial number given in

the ‘768 patent.
(CBr at 25.) Finally, complainants argued that, even if the ‘010 patent is not incorporated by
reference, the ‘010 patent is “nonetheless intrinsic evidence because it is cited as art of record in
the ‘966 and ‘847 patents, as reflected on the cover pages of these patents.” (CBr at 29-30.)

Respondents argued that the ‘010 patent was not incorporated by reference, as the
incorporation statement in the common specification does not identify the referenced document
by application number, patent number, assignee, or inventors. (RBr at Sec. II, p. 15.) Also,
respondents argued that the title in the common specification did not accurately identify the
application leading to the ‘010 patent. (RBr at Sec. II, p. 14.)

The staff argued that the ‘010 patent is not incorporated by reference into the ‘768 patent
because while “[t]he serial number is that of the ‘010 patent ... the title is not.” (SBr at 11) and
that “the reference in the specification of the ‘768 patent to two different applications, neither of
which correctly sets forth the title of the ‘010 patent, increases the ambiguity that one of ordinary
skill in the art would readily see.” (SBr at 12.) Thus, the staff also argued that the common
specification does not identify the ‘010 patent by title. (SBr at 8.) Further, the staff argued that:

The confusion may have been somewhat ameliorated had
InterDigital identified the referenced application by serial number
or some other identifying information, such as inventor or assignee.
Indeed, it would have been an easy matter for InterDigital to have
made such an amendment during the eight years between the

issuance of the ‘010 patent and the issuance of the first of the short
code ramp-up patents. But InterDigital failed to amend the
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common specification to refer to any of these things. SPFF III.14;
see also MPEP § 608.01(p); and 37 C.F.R. §§ 1.57(b)(2) and (g).

(SBrat9.)
Regarding whether the ‘010 patent is incorporated by reference in the common
specification, the two “incorporation statements” relied on by complainants read as follows:

[I]t is extremely important in wireless CDMA communication
systems to control the transmission power of all subscriber units.
This is best accomplished by using a closed loop power control
algorithm once a communication link is established. A detailed
explanation of such a closed loop algorithm is disclosed in U.S.
patent application entitled Code Division Multiple Access
(CDMA) System and Method filed concurrently herewith, which is
incorporated by reference as if fully set forth.

* % %

Periodic updating of the short code averages the interference

created by the short code over the entire spectrum. A detailed
description of the selection and updatirig of the short codes is
outside the scope of this invention. However, such a detailed
description is disclosed in the related application U.S. patent

application entitled Code Division Multiple Access (CDMA)
System and Method.

(CX-1 at 2:31-35, 9:30-35 (emphasis added).) These two “incorporation statements” are also
found in ‘768 patent, which is incorporated by reference into and is the priority application for
each of the power ramp-up patents. (CFF 1.24, CFF 1.32, CFF 1.41 (undisputed); CX-4 at 2:18-
26, 9:18-24.) Thus, the ‘768 patent was filed before the power ramp-up patents, on June 27,
1996.° (CX-4.) The 768 patent lists InterDigital Technology Corporation Wilmington, Del. as

the assignee. Both of said incorporation statements refer to an application titled Code Division

3 The *004 patent was filed on June 14, 2004, the ‘966 patent was filed on June 29, 2005,
and the ‘847 patent was filed on June 29, 2005. (See CX-1 at ITC-COMP00005644; CX-2 at
ITC-COMP00016933; CX-3 at ITC-COMP00021139.)
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Multiple Access (CDMA) System and Method.® Neither passage explicitly identifies the
referenced patent application by serial number, patent number, inventors, or assignee. The
administrative law judge finds it significant that the statement “filed concurrently herewith” in
said incorporation statements, supra, discloses both the filing date and the assignee as being the
same as that of the ‘768 patent, which was the priority patent of the power ramp-up patents.
While the title referred to in said incorporation statements, supra, does not accurately reflect the
title of the ‘010 patent, the difference as between the title in the common specification, viz.
“Code Division Multiple Access (CDMA) System and Method,” and the title of the ‘010 patent,
viz. “Code Division Multiple Access (CDMA) Communication System,” is merely that the
former contains the words “System and Method” while the latter reads “Communication
System.” (Compare CX-1 at 2:32-34, 9:34-35 with CX-52 at Title Page.) Nine of the patents that
issued from other applications filed by the assignee concurrently with the ‘768 patent, L.e., on
June 27, 1996, are U.S. Patent Nos. 5,796,776; 5,991:329; 5,9&2,919; 5,799,010; 5,748,687,
6,487,190; 5,953,346; 5,940,382; and 5,754,803. (CPre at 45-47.) The administrative law judge
finds that a person of ordinary skill in the art, at the time of the issuance of the ‘004 patent on
October 3, 2006, could ascertain what applications for patents were filed by a particular assignee
on a particular date (in this situation, 27, 1996) by, inter alia, reviewing the electronic databases
of the U.S. Patent Office. The titles of the applications filed by the assignee on the same day as

the application (viz., June 27, 1996) which led to the 768 patent follows, with the application for

the ‘010 patent listed first, are as follows:

® The Joint Stipulation Regarding Technology At Issue defines CDMA as a method. (SX-
4 at 1 (“The multiple access (MA) method used in the ‘004 Patent Family is Code Division
Multiple Access (CDMA) ...”).)
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Application No. | Patent No. | Title

08/669,775 5,799,010 | Code Division Multiple Access (CDMA) Communication
(CX-52) System

08/669,769 5,796,776 | Code Sequence Generator in a CDMA Modem

08/669,770 5,991,329 | Automatic Power Control System for a Code Division
Multiple Access (CDMA) Communications System

08/669,771 5,912,919 | Efficient Multipath Centroid Tracking Circuit for a Code
Division Multiple Access (CDMA) System

08/669,776 5,748,687 | Spreading Code Sequence Acquisition System and Method
That Allows Fast Acquisition in Code Division Multiple
Access (CDMA) Systems

08/670,160 6,487,190 | Efficient Multichannel Filtering for CDMA Modems

08/671,067 5,953,346 | CDMA Communication System Which Selectively
Suppresses Data Transmissions During Establishment of a
Communication Channel

08/671,068 5,940,382 | Virtual Locating of a Fixed Subscriber Unit to Reduce Re-
Acquisition Time

08/671,221 5,754,803 | Parallel Packetized Intermodule Acbitrated High Speed
Control and Data Bus :

(See CPre at 46; RPre at Sec. 11, p. 76.)" As found, supra, the date of filing, viz., June 27, 1996

and the assignee, viz. InterDigital Technology Corporation, is known. The ‘768 patent states, in
the “Background of the Invention” section, that “[t]he present invention relates generally to
CDMA communication systems.” (CX-1 at 24-25; CX-4 at 1:14-16.) The administrative law
judge rejects the argument that, given that an application with the precise title “Code Division

Multiple Access (CDMA) System and Method” is not found, a person of ordinary skill in the art

" The administrative has taken judicial notice of said eight patents, which are public
documents and have been unambiguously identified in the record as relevant to this investigation,
and has included said patents as ALJ exhibits ALJ- Ex. 1 to ALJ-Ex. 8.
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would not find and review the patent application titled “Code Division Multiple Access (CDMA)
Communication System” filed on June 27, 1996, as indicated, supra. Given the short list of
applications filed on June 27, 1996, supra, and the fact that no other application has a fitle similar
to that listed in the incorporation statements, such an argument “presumes stupidity rather than
skill” on the part of the person of ordinary skill in the art. See In re Sovish, 769 F.2d 738, 743.
Finally, the Background section of the ‘010 patent reads:

The present invention generally pertains to Code Division Multiple
Access (CDMA) communications, also known as spread-spectrum
communications. More particularly, the present invention pertains
to a system and method for providing a high capacity, CDMA
communications system which provides for one or more
simultaneous user bearer channels over a given radio frequency,
allowing dynamic allocation of bearer channel rate while rejecting
multipath interference.

; (CX-52 &t 1:8-17 (emphasis added).) Thus, the ‘010 patent is consistent witi whét is stated in
the joint stipulation. See SX-4. ”

Further, the subject matter of the ‘010 patent application which the common specification
purports to incorporate by reference is described distinctly as having both a detailed explanation
of a closed loop algorithm and a detailed description of the selection and updating of short codes.
The administrative law judge finds that a person of ordinary skill in the art would conclude that
the specification of the ‘010 patent meets the subject matter description as set forth in the
“incorporation statements” in the common specification. (See, generally, CX-52.) In contrast,
the administrative law judge has reviewed each of the patents that issued from each of the other
applications concurrently filed by the assignee on June 27, 1996, as represented by the

application list, supra, and finds that no other of these applications matches the subject matter
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detailed in the incorporation statements. Therefore, the administrative law judge finds that the

‘010 patent is identified with sufficient particularity, viz., title, filing date, assignee, and subject
matter, to be incorporated by reference. Further, the administrative law judge notes that although
respondents and the staff have argued that the incorrect title is confusing, neither respondents nor
staff have argued that any particular patent application filed concurrently with the ‘768 patent
covered subject matter that was similar to the ‘010 patent. Based on the foregoing, the
administrative law judge finds that a person of ordinary skill in the art would understand that the

‘010 patent is incorporated by reference into the power ramp-up patents.

2 <6 k13

2. The claimed phrases “code,
“different codes”

code of a first type,” “first code,” “code signal(s)” and

The claimed term “code” appears in asserted claims 1, 2, 31, and 59 of the ‘004 patent,

‘asseﬁed claim !iof the ‘966 patent, and asserted claims 5, 6, 9, and 11 of the ‘847 patent.? A
f"cellular system, such as the one described in the power ramp-up patents, uses certein radio

frequency bands that are shared by bése stations and subscriber units. (SX-4 at 1.) While there
are a number of technical methods that are used to provide simultaneous access by all the base
stations and the subscriber units in each frequency band, the method used in the power ramp-up
patents is CDMA. (SX-4 at 1.) In CDMA, different codes are used by the base stations and
subscriber units to define the different system channels to be used for control and
communication. (SX-4 at 1-2.)

Complainants argued that the claim term “code” should be construed as “a sequence of

¥ Although the remaining asserted claims, viz. claims 3, 8, 9, and 11 of the ‘966 patent,
do not contain the claim term “code,” each depend from claim 1 of the ‘966 patent which does
and thus, said claim term is relevant to each of the asserted claims of the power ramp-up patents.

29



chips,” and that various modifiers of said term code, such as access, pilot, spreading, and short,
cannot be imported into claims where the more general term “code” is used. (CBr at 31.)
Complainants further argued that:

By applying the commonly understood meaning of “code,” [which
complainants interpreted as “a sequence of chips”] the various
different claim clauses using this term can be readily understood.
For example, “a first code” would be a “first sequence of chips”;
“second code” would be a “second sequence of chips”; “plurality
of different codes” would be “multiple different sequences of
chips”; and “codes of a first/second type” would be “a sequence of
chips that share a common characteristic or are members of the

same group.”
(CBr at 32.) Complainants also argued that the term “signal” is generic, and thus that the
claimed phrase “code signal” is a “sequence of chips that is broadcast or transmitted as a signal.”
(CBrat34,n.8.)

Respondents argued that the claimed phrases “code signal,” “first code,” “code of a/the

first type,” “codes” and “signal” in the claims all correspond to the “short codes” in the common
specification and argued:

When considered in the context of the Common Specification of
the Short Code Ramp-Up Patents, the terms “code signals,” “first
code,” “code of a/the first type,” “codes,” and “signals” each
correspond to the disclosed “short codes” because only those codes
are described as having the characteristics recited in the claims.

(RBr at Sec. II, p. 21.)
The staff argued:
The common specification of the short code ramp-up patents never
describes a code that is not a spreading code, and never describes a
code to be something other than a spreading code. SPFF I11.23. For

at least this reason, the Staff submits that “code,” “first code,”
“code of a first type,” “different codes,” and “code signals” mean
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“a spreading code or a portion of a spreading code.”
(SBrat 19.)

Based on the foregoing, the administrative law judge finds that there is a dispute over the
claim terms “code” and “signal,” while there is no substantive disagreement as to the meaning of
the claim terms, “first,” “second,” “type,” and “different.” Thus, he finds that “first,” “second,”
“type,” and “different” modify the claim term “code” as per their plain and ordinary meaning.

Claim 1 of the ‘004 patent, as recited supra but with certain emphasis reads:

A method for performing power control in a wireless code division
multiple access communication system, the method comprising:
transmitting dynamically selected code signals at increasing power
levels until an acknowledgement is received indicating that one of
said dynamically selected code signals was detected, wherein the
transmitted dynamically selected code signals carry no data; and in
response to detecting the acknowledgment, transmitting an access
signal whereir: the access signal is associated with the dynamically

. selected code signals and each of the dynamically selected code
signals are shorter than the access signal.

(CX-1 at 10:62-1 1:7 (emphasis added).) Thus, the access signal and the dynamically selected
code signals are both transmitted, pursuant to the plain language of the claims.
Claim 1 of the ‘966 patent, as recited supra but with certain emphasis, reads:

A wireless code division multiple access (CDMA) subscriber unit
comprising: a transmitter configured such that, when the subscriber
unit is first accessing a CDMA network and wants to establish
communications with a base station associated with the network
over a communication channel to be indicated by the base station,
the transmitter successively transmits signals until the subscriber
unit receives from the base station an indication that a transmitted
one of the signals has been detected by the base station, wherein
each transmission of one of the signals by the transmitter is at an
increased power level with respect to a prior transmission of one of
the signals; the transmitter further configured such that the
transmitter transmits to the base station a message indicating to the
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base station that the subscriber unit wants to establish the
communications with the base station over the communication
channel to be indicated by the base station, the message being
transmitted only subsequent to the subscriber unit receiving the
indication, wherein each of the successively transmitted signals and
the message are generated using a same code; and wherein each of
the successively transmitted signals is shorter than the message.

(CX-2 at 10:62-11:19 (emphasis added).) Further, claim 11 of the ‘847 patent reads in part:

an access signal to facilitate communication initialization between
said subscriber unit and said base station, said access signal as

transmitted by said subscriber unit, and said plurality of different

codes, as transmitted by said subscriber unit, being a function of a
same code.

(CX-3 at 16:7-14 (emphasis added).)’ Thus, according to the language of the claims of the ‘004
patent, ‘966 patent, and the’847 patent, the administrative law judge finds that a person of
ordinary skill in the art would conclude that there is a relationship between the “access signal,”"
the “dynamically selected code sigr;als,” and the “pluraiity of different codes.”

Each of the independent asserted claims, as stated in their preambles, relate to CDMA.
(See, e.g., Claim 1 of the ‘966 patent (CX-2 at 10:62-63 (“A wireless code division multiple
access (CDMA) subscriber unit...”)); Claim 5 of the ‘847 patent (CX-3 at 12:32-33 (“A wireless
code division multiple access (CDMA) subscriber unit...””)); Claim 1 of the ‘004 patent (CX-1 at
10:62-63 (“in a wireless code division multiple access communication system...”)).) The

common specification discloses, in the Background of the Invention section:

In a CDMA [Code Division Multiple Access] system, the same

° The full text of claim 11 of the ‘847 patent is reproduced supra.

19 The asserted claims disclose that a code signal and an access signal are transmitted,
and claim 1 of the ‘966 patent discloses that a “signal” is transmitted, the administrative law
judge finds that the claimed term “signal” may be used interchangeably with “code signal.”
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portion of the frequency spectrum is used for communication by all
subscriber units. Each subscriber unit's baseband data signal is
multiplied by a code sequence, called the “spreading code”. which
has a much higher rate than the data. The ratio of the spreading
code rate to the data symbol rate is called the “spreading factor” or
the “processing gain”. This coding results in a much wider
transmission spectrum than the spectrum of the baseband data
signal, hence the technique is called “spread spectrum”. Subscriber

units and their communications can be discriminated by assigning

a unique spreading code to each communication link which is
called a CDMA channel.

(CX-1 at 1:66-2:10 (emphasis added).) Hence, the common specification discloses that
spreading codes are an essential component of a CDMA system. Moreover, the ‘010 patent,
which the administrative law judge has found to be incorporated by reference into the common
specification, states, in its Description of the Relevant Art:

Spread spectrum modulation refers to modulating a information
signal with a spreading code signal; the spreading code signal
being generated by a code generator where the period Tc of the
spreading code is substantially less than the period of the
information data bit or symbol signal. The code may modulate the
carrier frequency upon which the information has been sent, called
frequency-hopped spreading, or may directly modulate the signal
by multiplying the spreading code with the information data signal,
called direct-sequence spreading (DS). Spread-spectrum
modulation produces a signal with bandwidth substantially greater
than that required to transmit the information signal. Synchronous
reception and despreading of the signal at the receiver recovers the
original information. A synchronous demodulator in the receiver
uses a reference signal to synchronize the despreading circuits to
the input spread-spectrum modulated signal to recover the carrier
and information signals.

One area in which spread-spectrum techniques are used is in the
field of mobile cellular communications to provide personal
communication services (PCS). Such systems desirably support
large numbers of users, control Doppler shift and fade, and provide
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high speed digital data signals with low bit error rates. These
systems employ a family of orthogonal or quasi-orthogonal
spreading codes, with a pilot spreading code sequence
synchronized to the family of codes. Each user is assigned one of
the spreading codes as a spreading function. Related problems of
such a system are: supporting a large number of users with the
orthogonal codes, handling reduced power available to remote
units, and handling multipath fading effects. Solutions to such
problems include using phased-array antennas to generate multiple
steerable beams, using very long orthogonal or quasi-orthogonal
code sequences. These sequences may be reused by cyclic shifting
of the code synchronized to a central reference, and diversity
combining of multipath signals.

(CX-52 at 1:36-53, 2:9-27 (emphasis added).) Thus, spread-spectrum modulation, viz.
modulating a information signal with a spreading code signal, produces a signal with bandwidth
substantially greater than that required to transmit the information signal. In a further
explanation of spreading codes, the ‘010 patent specification discloses:

The Spreadiig Codes

The CDMA code generators used to encode the logical channels of
the present invention employ Linear Shift Registers (LSRs) with
feedback logic which is a method well known in the art. The code
generators of the present embodiment of the invention generate 64
synchronous unique sequences. Each RF communication channel
uses a pair of these sequences for complex spreading (in-phase and
quadrature) of the logical channels, so the generator gives 32
complex spreading sequences. The sequences are generated by a
single seed which is initially loaded into a shift register circuit.

(CX-52 at 17:16-26 (emphasis added).) The ‘010 patent specification also discloses:

The spreading code is a sequence of symbols, called chips or chip
values.

(CX-52 at 17:46-47.) Therefore, the administrative law judge finds that the spreading code is a

sequence of chips.
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The common specification further discloses:

The access code in the preferred embodiment, as previously
described herein, is approximately 30 million chips in length.
However, the short code is much smaller. The short code can be
chosen to be any length that is sufficiently short to permit quick
detection. There is an advantage in choosing a short code length
such that it divides the access code period evenly. For the access
code described herein, the short code is preferably chosen to be 32,
64 or 128 chips in length. Alternatively, the short code may be as
short as one symbol length, as will be described in detail
hereinafter.

Referring to FIG. 8, the period of the short code is equal to one
symbol length and the start of each period is aligned with a symbol
boundary. The short codes are generated from a regular length
spreading code. A symbol length portion from the beginning of the
spreading code is stored and used as the short code for the next 3
milliseconds. Every 3 milliseconds, a new symbol length portion of
the spreading code replaces the old short code. Since the spreading
code period is an integer multiple of 3 milliseconds, the same short
codes are repeated once every period of the spreading code.

* 3k %k

The transmitter section 74 comprises a spreading code
generator 86 which generates and outputs spreading codes to a
data transmitter 88 and a short code and access code transmitter 90.

(CX-1 at 8:5-14, 9:18-28, 10:10-13 (emphasis added).) Hence, the codes referred to in the
specification are a various number of chips in lengths, which is consistent with being “a sequence
of chips,” and the specification discloses that short codes and access codes are generated by a
“spreading code generator.”

The phrase “short code,” although not a claimed phrase, is frequently referred to in the

common specification. For example, claim 1 of the ‘004 patent recites “each of the dynamically
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selected code signals are shorter than the access signal.” (CX-1 at 11:6-7 (emphasis added).)

Claim 1 of the ‘966 patent further recites “wherein each of the successively transmitted signals is
shorter than the message.” (CX-2 at 11:18-19 (emphasis added).) Referring to extrinsic
evidence, complainants’ expert Vojcic testified:
Q. Yes. Dr. Vojcic, you indicated spreading codes do
not necessarily increase the bandwidth of an
information signal.
Are there codes in the '004 patent which are

spreading codes but do not increase the bandwidth
of information signals?

A. Yes, there are. Like pilot code. short code, and
access code.

Is that shown in figure 10 of the '004 patent?
A. That's correct. ':
(Tr. at 430-31 (emphasis added).) Thus, coﬁfiéinants’ expert testified that short codes in the
specification were spreading codes. Compldinants’ expert further stated:

Q. Now, you would agree with me that in the context of the '004
patent, a short code is just part of a spreading code?

A. Yes, I do agree with that.
(Tr. at 609.) Consistent with the testimony of complainants’ expert, respondents’ expert Lanning
testified:
Q. Let me turn to RDX-1167 and ask you if this excerpt from the
specification of the short code ramp-up patents informs your
opinion as to the proper construction?
A. Yes, the highlighted portions specifically states that the spreading

code transmitted by the subscriber unit is much shorter than the
rest of the spreading codes. Hence, the term short code.
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(Tr. at 1633 (emphasis added).)"
In view of the foregoing, the claim language, the common specification, the specification
of the ‘010 patent, and extrinsic evidence, the administrative law judge finds the claim term

“code” to be synonymous with “spreading code,” and to be construed as “a sequence of chips.”

' Even Ozluturk, an inventor of the power ramp-up patents, at the hearing agreed with
experts Vojcic and Lanning. Ozluturk testified:

Q. You have introduced this term short code in your description of the
solution to the interference problem for the access procedure
technology. What is a short code in that context?

A. Well, in this context, the short code is a spreading code, just like
all the other codes we use in broadband CDMA. As a spreading
code, it is a sequence of chips, chip values.

But I need to give you a little bit more explanation to
clarify. Now, we use many, many codes in broadband “DMA.
And I call them all spreading codes. T}‘ey come out of the same
spreading code generator. ¥

But some of these codes are reference codes. They provide
reference, timing reference, channel information, but they don't
spread anything.

We use the term spreading code for all of them, in referring
to all of them, but some of these codes, such as the short codes and
the access code that I mentioned previously, are the examples of
codes that do not spread anything. And they are there for timing
reference and as indicators. And then there are other codes that
actually do spread, say, user data signals or call setup messages, for
example.

And so in that context short codes are spreading codes. As
I mentioned, they are the types of spreading codes that do not
spread anything. And since all the other codes we generated were
very long, to get a short code, we would take a portion of the long
code and use it as a short code.

(Tr. at 126-27 (emphasis added).)
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Accordingly, the claimed phrase, “first code” is construed as “first sequence of chips;” the
claimed phrase “code of a [or the] first type” is construed as “sequence of chips of a/the first
type;” and the claimed phrase “different codes” is construed as “different sequences of chips.”
Regarding the term “signal” in the claimed phrase “code signal(s)” the specification and
the language of the claims, cited supra, specify that a signal is transmitted. Therefore, the
administrative law judge finds that a person of ordinary skill in the art would interpret the claim
phrase “code signal” as “a sequence of chips that is transmitted.” Further, the administrative law
judge has found, supra, that the claimed phrase “signal” in the context of claim 1 of the ‘966
patent is interchangeable with the claimed phrase “code signal.” Thus said phrase “signal” in

said claim is construed as “a sequence of chips that is transmitted.”<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>